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\ Speey Frevelels
Two weeks after wider distribution of WHITEWASH was'initiated, In

May of 1966, I wrote Drs, Humes and Boswell about thelr autopsy examina-
tion and testimony. The letters were virtually identical. I sent them
copies of the book, called thelr attention to its appropriate chapters,
asked for an interview, separately or together, wlth or without a tape
recording they or I could make to presclude the possiblllity of my not
recalling correctly what they sald, and walted.

Neither responded, then or since.

What I then wrote and wha t I referred them to entirsly discredits
the official story - thelr storles -~ of that autopsy. It also ralses

the questions of perjury and subornation of perjury In the medlcal

testimony. -fﬂat these doctors were and are sllent about thelir "error" £
_f 1\( d\\ti‘.'- / _

Ly e

‘per jury and its subornation, smi—them, has its own kind of eloguence.

Both doctors have been consistent:’fhey have steadfastly refused

to see those who indlcated disagreement with their testf_me{)/ny, sven those -

who merely indicated possible doubt. Although Humes J:a:;’; his silence
was ordered, both have spoken to those they krew in advance would write
what they wanted written and vhat the government wantebd‘.';;;g; In refus-
ing to talk to me, the dctors nonetheless talked to others because of
me, something not reflected in the s torles that appeared the erd of
November 1966, sven wherse mg“g;};’érs, such as the Washington Post and
the Baltimore s_un;knei.r the fact. Thils 1s consident with the B8ffort to
suppress WHITEWASH, in which both papers joined. I had given the Post
copies of my letters to the doctors and others (J. Edgar Hoover and
James Rowley) the day they were sent. The Sun's reporter got!;f_xzfgl?1 out of

bed early in the morning of the day he lmberviewed Boswell, :.fﬁeh he

finished his stint on that morning paper, and kept me up until about

' 2:00 ae.m. preparing himself for his interview,
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A number of staff members of the Baltimore Sun were interested in
my work. At their request, I had driven to that city, met with them,
discussed my findings and answered their questions. Richard H. Levine,
who Interviewed Boswell, was not one of them. A. W. (Art) Gelselman, Jr.,
was., Hls interview wlth me, shortly after the spectacular publicity
attendant to the "return" of the pictures and X-rays sald to have been

those of the autopsy, was published November 11, 1966. He then wrote:

@)

This interested Levine, who discussed it with his associate and
my friend, John Friedman. There followed a number of post-midnight
calls, each begimning after Friedman and Levine had finished thdr writ-
Ing for the morning papers, each getting me out of bed, each lasting a
long time.

Levine made clear his singular Interest was sensation. His is a
Jjaundiced view of people, reporting, newspapers and life, from the Ben
Hecht=Charles McArthur mold of reporters. He had no interest in fact
or truth, in helping establish what did happen when the Presldent was
murdersd or in 1ts official investigation. Scandal was fine, ad what
difference did it make If he spread misinformatlon or engaged in propa-
ganda rather than a quest for truth, as long as he got a story that
would plegse his superiors and sell papers? Our dizussions were pointed
and heated. What T tdd him of the avallable fact of the autopsy did not
interest him, what he might be able to learn from interviewlng the

“ doctors, what he might be abls teo add to public knowledge by close



Anthor OF ‘W hitewash’

By A. W. Geigetmas, Jr,

The author of & hork eriticizing the War-
ren Commission said today that serious
scholars on the topic of the Kennedy assas-
gination should be rpermiited to study
Xaays and photagrapiis of the late Presi.
dent’s autopsy.

Harn'd Weisberg. au im of ““Whitewash,”
mald that, otherwise, the announcement

" Tuesday that the Kennedy family had re-
leesed the X-rays, negatives and transpar-
encies to the Nationa! Archives is mean-
ingless |

. He described the announcement as an
effort by a Govermnent under pressure “to
give Lhe impression it has nothing to hide
while it is hiding things.'

In D.C. To Protest

He said he has gone to the National
Archives in Washington ln protest the de-
elgion to limit for five years access to the
X-rays and photograpts to official Govern.
ment Investigative bodier except with spe-
cific approval of the Keniedy family.

Mr. Weisberg's comments followed the
agnouncement by the Justice Department
that the autopsv data was heing released
to the custody of the Cuvernment by the
Kennedy family at '%¢ toicrnment's re-
quest.. v~ " :

The Government spvkesman admitted
thet the rece:.: publicaticn of books raising

. questions abont ‘the covimission’s findings
| “had somethin' o de™ with the request.
- Even slter the fiveear period, the
an said. mcross *he X.rays and
aphs will ne considerably m-B:o;

critics of the commuission findings

Kennedy >=ﬁ
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HAROLD WEISBERG

sprebably weuld not qualily as persons to be
cgranted such access,
. He zaid, however, that it would be pos-
isible for these critics to designale qualified
pathologists to study the data after this
period.
Designate Pathologists

Mr. Weisberg's publication is among a
number of recent books and magazine
articles questionirg the commissior’s find-
_ing that Lee Harvey Oswald was solely re-
spansihle for President Fennedy's death.
* Mr. Weisberg, 33, a former newspaper

-,

man and United Siates Senate investigator,
lives on a farm In Hyatistown in Montgom-
ery county. He said he began his book Im-
mediately aller the assassination,

' “The transfer of the X-rays and phato-

Eraphs is meaningless because of the eon-
ditions surrpunding them," Mr. Weisberg
£2id today. “'The Government from the very
beginning had access to the evidence in the
piciures and has nol used them,

Arcens Needed, He Savs

“What Is needed now i= mecess tn the
Xorays and photographs of the autnpsy by
those infinitely familiar with the evidence,
not begmming five years hence with access
by uninformed pathologists who lmow
nothing about the case.”

The Xaays and photographs in them-
selves can ad, little to the knowledge of the
case except to conhrm testimony of doctors
at the cgmmission hearings, he said. But,
he said, ‘in 'he hands of persons such as.
himself and others with intricate knowledge
of the assassination such data can be placed
in their proper context and “be quite val-
uable.” : )

A look at the X-ravs and photographs,
Mr. Weisherg said, might clear up what he
described as “the unresolved econflict of
testimony™ of pathologists appearing be.
fore the commission am to the entrance
point of the first of two hLullets hitting the
President.

Polnt. Of Enlrance

He pointed out that a chart apparent!
made vME_,_._o time of sutnpsy -_.hm.& E“
first bullet hit the President in the back.
Yet, he noted, dostors also presented the

opsy _Ums Access Urged

commission with an artist's dawing show.
ing that the bullet entered the neck,

The point of entranes is {mmortant, Mr.
Weishery, said, because it could when com-
pared with wha! some experts believs waa
the exit hola just at the knot of the
President's tie, mndicate the height from
which the gun shooting the buliet waa fired,

The lower the entrancs wou:d in (he
President’s body the lesa lkaly wes the
possibility that the same bllet also hit
Texa: Gov. John B, Coanally, *r. Welsherg
said.

He printed nut thet the glig which hit the
Governow  apparently was moving st &
downwsar: angle bitting him [ the bac
exiting through 'z chest, passing
his wrist and siriking his thigh.

Malor tnestions

The maiter of how many hullols ware
fired at the presidential car has been g
major questlon raised
the other authors, -

The commission stated that #t had been |

sundad by’ the evidemce thot the FAmS
ullet which first hii President Kennedy
also hit Governo- Connally, This would sgn.
form with the commission's finding that
Gswald alone did the shooting from the
sixth fioor of the Texas Book Depository.

If the twe afficials were it by eeparats
bullets thers weuld have ha: tn be o |
assassing bacause with the typs of rifis’
uted by Oswald be could noi have snapped
off two shols 'r #o short a span, Mr, Wels-'
berg znd aihers have ~laimed. !

Mr. Weisherg sa'd tinl so far 21 he
Imows the X.ravs and photegraphs of the
autopsy wers never frrma'ly presented tn
ths commission and are not parr of lis
record.

]
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by Mr. Weisberg andy - * *
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gquestioning, in his view, offered little progpect of jounmalis tlc
sensation.

He fixed upon my comment about the autopsy chart in Gelselman's
story.

"What should I ask Humes about that?" he wanted to know.

Mark Lane and a few others then critical of the Commisslon attrib-
uted this chart to Humes. T?ig is a logical but factual error, as read-
ing Humes'! testlmony revealé&; for he swore he had not prepmred that
chart. I told Levine that Boswell had drafted it.

"Gould he have been wrong?" Levine wanted to know.

"He was wrong", I told him, because bhe Indicated measurements
did not coincide with the location marked. All other evidence colincided
wigg%ihe location marked, not the measurements. I suggested to Levine
that the error was llkely a typogrmphical one In the written number.

If he could get Boswell to say he made a mistake, Levine sald, he
had his headline. The Levine formula exactly colncided with the govern-
ment's interest. His interview with Boswell was set and came off as
seheduled - and formulated - as unofficial official propaganda. But 1t
was too good a formula, too close to perfect in addressing the govern-
ment¥s then acute distress, for its carrying off to be 'trusted to a
brash reporter unknown to the governmanq)or to a single paper when that
device could be sprsad around the world.

Of all the daja in the nine hundred ard fifty following the
autopsy testimony before the Warren Comméésion, by one of th ése rem rk-
able colncidences we are required to consider nothling else, the Assoc i-
ated Press just happened - entirely by happenstance - to select exactly
the same day Levine had arranged for his interview . It also souggéjﬁr.
Boawell out. Andgbout what did it want to intefview him? Only those

!
b W plrne)

things Levine had indicated to Boswell andlto me he would ask about.
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And what story did the Assoclated Press carry, what did 1lts re-
porter want to know? Only those things that fit te Levire formulal

With three doctors to seek out, it Interviewed Boswell only.

Of all the fact and flectlon of the autopsy, it also fixed on
this chart.

Tts story, a thin transparency of Levine's, contalned noth ing
not in his, but was spread throughout the world. Is 1t not addltionally
remarkable that the-AP carried only some of what Levire got from Dr.
Boswell?

No less remarkable is the wrld-wide journalistic acceptance of
the seeming boast that a President's autopsy was characterized by
sloppy work, lnaccuracy, carelessness and conjecture rather than the
precise science one expects from sutopsy surgeons, speciallsts in path-
ology and forenslc medicine.

Levine's 1ls a morning paper. The AP works around he clock. It
"beat" Levine to his own story, circulating it in time for afterncon
use the day before.

Tevine suspected I had "tlpped oﬂf" the AP, Quite naturally, he
found it difficult to believe 1t was %E}t colncidence that the AP
selized upon the same day to Intervliew the same doctor - ard no one else -
and ask him the same questions - and nothing else.

This is a part of the history I believe should be recorded, for
the papers of that tiﬁe, November 2-25, 1966, do not disclose this back-

ground and, consistent with their effort to suppress mentbn of and

credit to WHITEWASH, falsely indlcate the questlon was raised by Edwar

N
Epstein. His writing on the autopsy, based not upon the testimony, wikh
which he displayed monumental unfamlliarity, but upon what had been fed

him by former Commission staff members seeking self-justification, 1s so
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inaccurate he was unaware of the content of that document and hypo=-
theslzed that changes made the morning of November 2L, 1963, were made
much later,

How the news medla served the country should also be a matter of
record, as should 1ts self-conversion into an arm of govermment, an
agency of propaganda, part of the coverup.

So, we are told, Boawell proclaimed his awn error as the norm of
forensic medicine, the commonplace of autopsies, not different when a
President 1s murdered.

That a pathologlst acknowledged error in a Presidential autopsy
warranted this headline in the Baltlimore 8un, which ran the bammer *Aféﬂf
across the top of the front page:

"KENNEDY X-RAY DATA RELEASE BACKED". Safe in the knowledge
nothing like it would/;r could - happen, Boswell asked for examination

by "disinterested observers" (read "those who know nothing about it").

_lu!"ll‘;hd":’
(igigb This error, to the Washlngton Star, warn&nbeé/thépeadlinef

""Doctor at Kennedy Autopsy Explalns Sketch Controbersy". This is hardly
what Boswell did, not at all what the s tory sald ("made a dlagram error"
was the AP's euphemism).

Even the New ¥ork Times, whose well-informed and consclentious
reporter Peter Klhss used the same phrase, "dlagram error", anl without
question quoted Boswell as saying, "If I had known at the time that this
sketch would become pﬁblic record I would have been more careful" - as
though secrecy justified slovenly science when a President 1s murdered -
headed its own story "Autopsy Doctor Says Films Back Warren Report",

The Washington Post (which knew much better, its own staff having
asked questions about the autopsy of a former staff executive and gotten

not a single satisfactory answer) rewrote the AP story to eliminate the

—
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5
direct quotation of error, the indirect acknowledgment of 1t. "The

sketch was drawn quickly, as 'rough notes'", the Post explained, leavirg
the schizophrenia to its headline writer, whose fir st bank was "M.D.
Backs Warren Report" and whose second used the word the story did not,
"pdmits He Erred In Sketch".

There was no little journallistic child to say the Emperor was
naked, or to ask why the doctor might be expected to say the Report and
his testimony were wrong. Less politely: proclalm himself a per jurer.

For all their dilettante attitude, for all thelr fallure to prod
and probe, the reporters did come up with what would have been sensation-
al revelations to an honest press and on any other subject. Boswell
acknowledged to Levine that:

1] There were microscopie slides made of tissue "whlch indicated...
forelgn substances..." in the neck wound and that "the re was no
mention of these slides" in the autopsy repart, even fithough, he sald,
they confirm 1it.

ID "All marks and scars were noted", although there 1s no such chart in
the printed record or the flles.

When the body arrived "The pathologists (himself ard Humes) had

P
il
already been told of the probable extent of the injuries and what

had been done by physicians in Dallas"éfp _fbhi:s destroy’s";entirely the
flimsy excuse that they did not know a tracheotomy had bean per-
formed, as an FBI report we shall analyze also does.

-" ‘,\/Yi Wi W thb

l"_ When the autopsthas performed - but before Humes finlshed the fimal
draft by revising what he had written, "Oswald was still alive, and
it was believed the autopsy information would later be called upon

in court proceedings".

Not until they could not probe the rear, non-fatal wmnd did the
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' Dbsember 1, 1966

or. J. Thoratos Boawell RO e
Juburban Hospital : Pt
iclC 014 GecrgeSowa Read o
‘.9';’_1;'0\-1!”’,.-?9!;’“ " .J...-m-}-y

i Boswallt - »

It bas been reported to me, I hope erremeeusly, bhat
your fallure %o reapend to ay letter of six menths ago, with
“nlos I snclozed a copy of my book, WHITEWASH: THE REPORT OY Ti: A
«4iREN REPORT, waa dus %o pigue, bocause I hed mot sonsulteld you
i advauca of 1t» publleatlen. : .

A writer sttemptiag Se egusuld all of the 552 pesople 2
lisSe? 29 Cozmissicen wignessses and ths esnuakless thousands of
others in the printsd avidence ia 27 sush massive volumes could
naver in several lifetimes sesplote s beok,

I% 1s my bellef thal e aubepey of an asssasinsted
Fresident should e a medsl of completeness, presision, spssiri-
catloa, fast, and ascurpcy. It 1z wmy Belief Sha® when s bedy
sach as the fnddnﬁ'a Sommisslen, with & a%eff of man of suca
outstanding qm.nﬂu:igm. .:hl t_u:‘t:n from medlasl experta
anjoying the high pesisien Toapes status you end your occl-
Llskzues have sarned, all of us, ineadwding wwyiters, are eatltled
o assums and axpeot that the Commission and 1%s witnesses ap-
ysrecohad thelr Lnhappy responsibilities with unlimited dadiocsticn
%Yo 2onplsteness and Gruthfulness,

Ars you suggessiog I hbould have expested your tasl.du
Jould be inedequats, imacaplels or insssurats,-that the Comnis-
2ion dasired Shis, that the requirements impoasad on a pathologl-t
by sclence and law cammet be mot excapt with the predding nesi..
tance of a wriser?

Ths Oommisaieon and the medioal sexperts made thelr ocwn
ressord, All will have to stand on 1%,

As alweys happens with #his subjeoh, whemever officiul
parsons maks nialemem$a, they ralse more queations than thay ar-
awar, This is trus ef yeur statements to the Baltimors Sun,
broadesst widsly by the Asssciated Press,

Az in the past, I shall make no effort to forcs

—oa you or Dr, Humss, po sffort to entisa you 8o say a
jou do mot want e say. Whether or not you elsst to =»

snswar questlons is entirely your declalon, mugml oiler

standas I will meake & tipe racerding and pre you with a 3sopj.

: L 2snnot aveld neting Ser the pressat aad for olxcs s
Faas et mag De, tumss deellias oF refuss tc ans Saers you tes
Trrsen o balleve gnricusly qusstion Lhe aatepey eni Sy ta—J o
R 1% whils,. ter axrRzpla, seding Flecahnepr Anetel, ¢ Co~ul w
Frea rTandar, 1 aete also b you zrented #a ntervisw %o o, .
~6liimars _‘.‘._-_1_ whoo 16 was Zirat apparent %e you thet Lhe repert--
e dmew_miga of the subjast mabter et o1l #ad hagd g2 als cao?
cuvpese alliifiov frem yeu Jhaw you ultimately aald, thart you '
Cimed in ke efflefal susepsy shart.
i .“zi‘ua_buk, SHITSWASA X, will seen d# evailatls, =,
LD Akl « AWnG you eplaz. sut I de wRaB you ko gnow tac s
a8y e walegs T oyay sad prove An 1% 18 Gost che Ficeldpar -: .
g Apry umesslly of & Lodspy bk,
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doctors order "complete X-rays of the entire body"! Levine's words

are, "At thie point", or "when the wound in the back of the nezk was
discovered and probed, by finger and by metal surgical probe, no
bullet could be found."

Although the Fresident's body was taken apart sbng the possible
path of thebullet, thers is no reference to any sign of its path, merely
i} a bruise that could have been caused by the tracheotomy. They dld
not see a path, and bullets do make them. In fact, bullets cannct go
through a body without meking a detectable path.

The next day's telephone call to the Dallas dctors - e also
refers to but one when there had been two - "confirmed", as Levine put
it, "what was already a certainty to the pathologists - that there was
a bullet wound in the Presldent's neck at the point of the t racheotomy
Incision".

Then why was the telephone call made to "learn" this, or the
second one made at all?

(p.2€0)

The answer is in WHITEWASH: the Dallas doctors were tipped off.

"Later that day, November 23, Dr. Humes and Dr., Boswell went over
the rough draft and completed the protocol in i1ts final form." If this
is true, Dr., Humes perjured himself before the Commission (WHIT EWASH 180,
183) in swearing that, ™In the privacy of my own home, early in the
morning of November 2L, I made a draft of this repart waich I laber re-
vised and of which tﬁla (part of Exhibit 397) represents the revision.
That draft I personally burned in the fireplace of my recreation room"
(28373). This, to the Commission and the rewspapers ever since, is
normal - burn the President's abbtopsy and suppress the notes and the

ptctures ard the X-rays and the sllides of microscoplec examination and

the organ examination.
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Yet of his interview wlth Boswell, Levine sald hat "before this",
meaning earlier November 23 - when Oswald was stlll alve and there was
the absolute certainty that all the autopsy work aml findings would be
subject to rigorous cross-examination - "Dr. Humes destroyed" the draft.

Fur ther compllcating it 1s this representation of more drafts
of the autopsy than Humes or Boswell acknowledged under o th: "Dr.
Bogwell said that all the original notes were preserved, as far as he
knows, and were turned ober to the National Archives". ('(/)f tis he can
have no knowledge and i1t is untrue. No such not es are or have been
there, nor are they printed where required in the Commlisslon's record.)
"He said the things that were bumed were coples of the protocol as
they were revised."

Aside from the confllct with Humes on tke ime - and if Humms
swore falsely, Boswell was also under ocath and supported it, raising a_xfzu'u-‘
the question of perjury agadn - this language accounts for a minimum Lof
one more burned copy of the autopsy, at least one draft mare than, under
oath, the doctors acknowledged were made.

Boswell alao indicated papers had been prepared that no longer
exist, It is propsr and normal, as I have polnted out from the begin-
ning, to orient wounds from inflexible points sothat the lcc ation 1s
precise. Only varlables - the soulder joint and the mastold - are re-

2w irens
ferred to in the autopsy report. That was dene-after Oswald was
murdered, after it wz;xs known there would be no cross examination.

/) Levine's languagélajrﬂi:. Boswéll sald "that he ttought he had used a
vertebra as a third refersnce point, but tmt this did not appear in the
autopsy report or 1n the sketch."

This is part of the story that delighted e papers, that caused
them to vie with each other in joyous hosannahs becamuse there had been

error in the autopsy when a President was murdered; that made the papers
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proclaim the good news throughout the land - the Presidert's autopsy was
right because 1t was wrong - better than Gilbert and Sullivan - and all
is right with the government and the world! Never have the great and
pewerful been so uninhibitedly exultant in praise of error.

Error is what suddenly made the Warren Report right.

Nobody wondered - or asked why - 1t took Boswell theee years to
admit hls "error", especially because 1t was months after the aitopay
that he and Humes testified under oath. Nobody,.not Levine, the AP, the
Times or any other paper,.deigned to embarrass Dr. Boswell, once he
agreed to be Interviewed, by asking for comment on the tlhoroughgoing con-
demnation of this autopsy months earlier at the amnual meeting of the
American Academy of Forenslec Sclences, which heard 1t denounced as incom-
plete, "weak}.. camnot establish a chain of evidence...falled to maintain
original notes...must be taken on falth rather than fact..."

Mystery aobut the mtopsy now is forever guaranteed, but there is
no mystery,';‘wﬁy Drs, Bosweélland Humes dld not snswer my lstter; did not
agree to speak to me, but did agree to be interviewed Yy tlome who knew
nothing about the fact or, like Levine, cared less. It la as though
there were guarantees in advance. From Levine none were needed. The
performance of the Associated Press could have been no more satigfactory
to Boswell if he had written their story.

Levine got his sensation, leaving the cougtry no better far it,
with 1lles about a Pre'sident‘s murder more widely dissemlnated, more
firmly belleved by more misinformed people. It did him no good, however,
for he le ft the Sun very soon thereafter.

Only the cause of Injustice and untruth profited, only those de-
gerving punishment were protedted.

But the newspapers were happy, happiler than they ever had been =

falrly emstatic - overjoyed beyord description - that the government at



83
last admitted an error to thelr llking. How much more delighted can a
newspaper owner or edltor be than when he learns the autopsy examinatlon
of hgfl Presldent was hasty, expected to be sacret) hence the beneficiary
of careless work, end one of the pathologists acknowledges all this plus

error ?

Levine told me he had asked Boswell why he had not resporded ‘bo;rny
letter, to the challenges I published in WHITEWASH, to my offer to tape
record anything he wanted to say so I could gquote him accurately.
Boswell, he told me, was put out because I did not consult him in advance
of publication. On Decemberl, 1966, I wrote him the following letter,
sending a copy to Humes: _

? "It has been reported to me, I hope erroneously, that your fallure to
respond to my letter of six months ago, with which I enclosed a copy
of my book, WHITEWASH: THE REPORT ON THE WARREN REPORT, was due to

plque, because I had not consulted you in advarce of its publication.

T) "A wrdter attempting to consult all of the 552 people listed as Com-

mission witnesses and the countless thousands of others 1ln the
printed evidence in 27 such massive volumes could never in several
lifetimes complete a book,

"It 1s my belief that the autopsy of an assassimted President should
be a model of completeness, precislon, specification, fact, and
accuracy. It is my belief that when a body such as the President's
Commission, with a staff of men of such outstanding qualificatlions,
takes testimony from mddlcal experts enjoying the high position ard
respected status you and yowr colleagues have earned, all of us, 1n-

cluding writers, are entitled to assume and expect that the Commisslon
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and 1ts witnesses approached their unhappy responsibllities with
unlimited dedlcation to completeness armd truthfulness.

"Are you suggesting I should have expected your testimony would be

=

Inadequate, incomplete or inaccurate, that the Commission desired
this, that the requttements Imposed on a pathologlst by science amd
law camot be met except with the prodding assistance of a writer?

"The Commission and the medical experts made their own record. All

will have to stand on 1t. '

H "As always happens with thls subject, whenever officlal persons make
statements, they ralse more questions than they answer. This 1s
true of your statements to the Baltimore 8un, broadcasé widely by
the Assoclated Press.

!" "Ag in the past, I shall make no effort to force myself upon you or
Dr. Humes, no effort to entice you to say anything you do not want
to say. Whether or not you qlect o xEER see me and answer questions
is entirely your decision. My original offer stands: I will make a

tape recording and provide you with a copy.

¢ "I cannot avoid noting for the ﬁresent and for history that you and

Dr. Humes decline or refuse to see those you have reason to believe
serlously questlon the autopsy and the testimony on it while, for
example, seeing Fletcher Knebel, a Commission defender. I note also
that you granted an Interview to the Baltimore Sun when it was fir st
apparent to you that the reporter had no knowledge of the subject
matter at all and had as his sole purpose eliciting from you what

N you ult imately said, that you erred in the official autopsy chart.

Jrf "My new book, WHITEWASH II, will soon be available. This time I
shall not send you coples. But I dr want you to know that among the
things T say and prove in 1t 1s that the President got an autopsy

unworthy of a Bowery bum,"
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Most of a year has passed. The doctors, aprarently, are still
pigued, for neither has responded to me. They were not totally silent.
CBS asked Humes to appear on its Special of Specials, four hour-long
apologles for the Report and the government, @wesented on prime tlme
Jume 25-28, 1967. These were thinly dl sgulsed as™on-partisan". Theb
conclusions were inconsistent wih the filmed infomation.

Proudly reading the copy carefully prepared fr him, Walter
Cronkite waa blissfully unaware that a line in which he took Journalistic
delight was 2 blg lie. The more he repeated it - and this he did thoough-
out the shows = the prouder he seemed to be: ‘

"Since the X-rays and films were turned over to the Archives,
Captain Humes has re-examined them. And tonight, for tke frst time, he
discusses with Dan Rather what 1s contdined in them".

The press widely interpreted thls and its fulsome repetition to
mean that CBS had been able toarrange for a private examinetion of the
suppressed pictures and X-rays of the autopsy. Thils, as the correspond- .

ence wilith the Archivist in the appendix shows, 1is falsefE; £eoov= vy, ,-:

If Humes dld not know of thls CBS lie when he was éilmed, he EXiEx
futtyx certainly did after the show was alred. He was and has been silent
about 1t, content to leave a lying record, that he "re-examined" the

plectures and—3-rays he had never before seen.

This is consistent with the lle In which he, without protest or
demurrer, participated in Rather's first quoted questlon:

"Commander -- now Captain -- Humes, have you had a look at the
pletures and X-rays from the autopsy since the time that you submltted
them to the Warren Commission?"

Now, even the ignorance that is reflected throughout this weries

of CBS whltewashes cannot possibly explain the clever m® nuances, the
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ideal subtleties of this false and deceptlive question, which tells more
blg lies, lles that must be known as such to anyone with a minimal urd er=-
standing of the fact of the Iinvestigation, autopsy and testimony. FPre-
sumably, after the expendlture of a touted half-million dollars and the
investment of the expensive time of a vast staff for seven months, CBS,
on the exescutive, operational and edltorlal levls, through all the channels
of 1ts research, legal anl many other dp@artments,1das satilsfiled it knew
the essence of the story at least. It is not possible, theeefors, tohse
less unpleasant larguage to describe the total departure from reality,

from the well-publicized fact that the Commission had never seen any of

the plctures or X-rays, as the last of this series freely acknowledges

DURING THE INterview with Commission member John MeGloy. When Lt was
too late to make any difference, Mccloy, with approprlate depth of feel-
ing, ﬁlih‘g;ﬁ;;’naturally.

"Yes, Mr. Rather, we have," Humes responded, fully aware that he
had never seen the plctures and—X-rays prior to his appearance before thg
@ommission or during its life and that he had never "submitted them to
the Warren Cemmission", &

There is no quéstlon here, no demurrer, no evaslon, no quallfica-
tion. Humes just plain lled in agreeing that he had "submitted" the
suppressed pletures and X-rays "to the Warren Commission". He well knew
- as did CBS - that they had left the hospltal with the President's body
In the possession Df'Roy H. Kellerman, chief of that unhappy day's
Secret Service q;cart. I print the recelpts and certifications in the
appendlx (p@gﬂhg.

‘ Likewlse, kkmrx is there no question th& Humes also knew the member:
of the Commission were not golng to see this film evidence, It 1s he,
personally, who supervised the preparation of "artist's conceptions” as an
accaptable substitute to him ard to the Commisslon, for the available
and 1aga11y reguired "best evidence", the pictures (WHIT WASH 181ff).

\rr "I‘ T Erawn st € f]rrth (mn"u\ fabol ;,,/I "H~ 7 "pun—- '{j/” ..-e/u., s tt.),?“/,- ,,;wh/,r
)“"‘" Jer,
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A1l echelons of CBS were devoted tothls lie and its repetition.

The script writer wasted no words before repeating it, giving Humes the
same pheasure:

"RATHER: And do you have any different conclusion, any different

1deas, any different thoughts now, after seelng them agaln, than you had
at that time?" .

There was no complaint from Humes that he had never seen them until
they were "returned" to the government, more than two and a half j ars
after his testimony, more than two years after the Commlssion had ceased
to exist:

"HUMES: No, we think they bear up very well, and very cbsely, ow
testimony before the Warren Commission",

If the pictures hold up "very well", Humes doesn't. It was a lie
for Rather and CBS to say, "after seelng them agaln" of the pictures that
Humes had never before seen, as 1t was for Humes to accept the lie and to
pretend by his answer that it was truth., In nelther case could the lie
have been accidental. CBS and Humes both knew the contrary truth.

With this beginning, it is less than surprising that CBS was 1t self
without protest, question, even a ralsed eyebrow, when Humes announced that
the officlal charts "routinely used to makk In general where certain marks
or gscars or wounds may be in conducting a post mortem examinatlion...are
never meant to be accurate or precisely to scals."

This shocks us "squares" who labor under the apparent misapprehensio:
that there should be nothing less accurate than man and sclence can makse it

b ~ 1n the autopsy of a murder victim, more particularly when he 1s a Presldent
and that everything in a medlco-legal document 1s "preclsel, not about
100% wrong in distance or in a different part of the body, as this mark is.

Boswell told Levire he thought there had been reference to a verte=-

bra. Humes made no such pretense, and in his description to CBS.was care-

ful to avoid the only meaningful point from which measurement 1s made. CBS
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was just as "precise": it avolded asking him. Not through ignorances
for CBS was famillar with my writing < 'beginning with the executive pro=-
ducer and descending through the ranks to those closer to mere mortalitye.

During his conversation with Rather, no litle voice whispered in
Humes' ear, "That was a whopper", or "Better tell the truth", or "What
will history say?" or even "Better late than never". Instead, when
Rather, with that speclal CBS delight in this favorite of its lies during
four unprecedented hours replete with them,rzﬁphasized this lie in the
special emphasis of repetition espoused by all propagandlsts, asked, "Your
re-sxamination of the photographs verify..."

"Yes, sir," Humes agaln said.

These were wonderful "shows". It ﬂ;—&a though Ananias sat on the
CBS shoulder, Munchausen on the wltnesses', and Barnum was in the
prompter's pit.

There is more to the magic of this "inaccurate" chart that was
never intedded to be anything else. (It was, after all, only part of a
President's autopsy and its "notes".) This time 1t 1s about the fatal‘
Raad womid)e o srrsitoid At o) Vheiomn iz e J-i"’?"-.‘f: Aoty dats poiv
to special words. In passing it 1s worth noting how "precisely" and
"incontrovertibly" the rear, non-fatal wound is located. Thils is he
beginning point of the interview and the crux of it. The 2precision" in
lochating the wound from side to side comes from its orientation with the
shoulder joint lnstead of the spine. Unless the width of the body is
given - and "precision" in this case, elininated that dimension, too,
(no note in the margin)’fhem 1s no horizontal location. In the vertical
dimension, orienting tlewound with the mastoid is the very apoté;sis of
"Incontrobeptibility". The mastoid, you see, is in a different part of
the body than the wound. It 1s in the head. This wound, by the Com-

mission's deseription and the word of the doctars, was in the nek. By
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the chart it was in the back. Nelther is pakt of the head where, |"incon=-
trovertibly", the mastoid is - even in Presidents. Necks come long and
necks come short. It is conceivable that if a Preslidentlial neck were
short, with "precise measureme nts" such as those "noted iIn the margin of
the drawing" - and a few centimeters would shorten enough - this wound
would be in the alr and not in either the neck or the back. Likewise,
if the Preslident's head was cocked glightly to the opposite side, his wound
would, by these "precise measurements” that are "noted in the margin of
the drawing", have been nonexistent. On the other hand, cock it down a
bit, and it is elther in the back, had it been in thke neck, or farther
down in the back if it was where all the observers saild it was to begln
with - in the back (WHITEWASH 185).

Of course, the observers - mere Secret Service and FBI agents -
hed no notes in their margins. They had only eyes.

Thus the advantages of the "new sclence", especially if buttressed
by the "new dictionary"™, are readlly apparent. They are most suitable
when invoked in the analysls and report on the murder of a President. How
much more "precise" or "incontrovertible" can one be? Or need one, when
it 1s a President's murder andtle autopsy is in a military hospital, con-
ducted by military personnel who have expelled all others.:

Rather asked about the head wound. .There are no other notes printed
in the official exhlb}t, No. 397, none in File 371, supposedly idert ical
with Exhibit 397. But:

RATHER: About the -- head wound ...

HUMES: ¥es, sir.

RATHER: .. bthere was only one?

HUMES: There was only one entrance wound in the head, yes, sir.

RATHER: And that was where?

HUMES: That was posterior, about two and a half centimebters to the

right of the mldline, posteriorly.
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But rirniﬁj' 74}§§Qh¢|ﬁd sarlier.
WECHTs,  TRf ).’ B8, Bether,
i8”a "vory '§ : il ey -he
diagrammed {2 2 &m: Balaw the

collar 1m11'll ‘ ' ta to the
side - which woul@ @ 23

aam: ‘Nowy We. cdemzw g3em 3 me ma @9 bullet
entered very: mu‘ ﬂn noa, d_id t mt?

WECHT: Yes, 'Inh ®1 nta ml mm W waul plnae.
This was meds by o Gedt l'

This sketch shnus the one thnt ’ﬁh uoepm “tho mnn
Commission. shovs the poime: ﬂ.? oRtTance m the back at a
mich higher lovol, and it shows the point of exit again at
approximately thes level of thie knet of‘thd fies - ¥ou can then
see why it was very impordant:'H meécuratelyuGetéraine whether
cr not the bullet wouad in the -bask was &t this point, or whetn.r
it wvas five and a half m- bolou the ooliar level.

CRONKITE: Since un x-uyl un films mn turnsd over to the
Archives, ctptaln Humes has re~ouemined them, Apd tonight, for
the first tizme, bo discusees vith Den Rather what 1s contained

RATHER: Commandsy -- chtmin Buul navs ycu had & look at
the pictures and X-rays from the autop since the time that jyou
submitted them to the hWarren Comluion

Nt .'7 ,;

au MES: !95', H!‘. Hlthﬂl‘, we h‘“.

~ATHER: And do you have any diffsront éoncluuon, any differes
1deas, soy differsnt thoughts now, aftsr sssing them agam, the.
;73 had at that time?

LUMES: No, we think they bear vory well, end very closely,
our tostimw bafore the hars'on oslden. -

AATHER: How many wounds in the Presidanmt’o bedy?
‘TUMES: There were twn wounds of entrance, and two of exit,
WATHER: And tho tuo wvounds of sntry were where?

MBS P"”‘”"—‘Jrlh ons low in the right posterior scalp, - !
cue 1n the base of the neck, on the right.

'A'Fuﬁ Let's talk about those two wounds, Captain. 5 th «f
esu tre blowups frem the Warren Commisaion R:gzrt, these 513
rf drawings. Now, thers are people who think y see
1larrepuncies in {hoso two drawings from the Warren Commlis=io.
oty 1n thatl this drawing shows the - what you calied -
try wound at the base of the neck of the Presicdsat - hnew:

1 Hospitu:.
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it to be, or ssems 20 show it te bo, in the upper back, near

the shoulder blade - considerably below the base of the neck.
Whereas, this drawing does show the entry wound tc be at the
base of the meck. HNew could you talk about thess, and reconclle
that? :

HUMES: Yes, sir. Thia first dvewing is a sketch that -- in
which the outlines of the figure are elready prepared, These
are on sheets of pegper present in the rcom in which the
examination is conducted, and are routinely used to mark in
general where certain marks or scars or wounds may be in
conducting a post mortem examinatiocn. They are never meant tc
to be accurate or precisely to scale.

AATHER: This is a routine in -- in preparing autopsy reports,
to use this kind of drawing, and at this stege for them not to
be prepared precisely?

- HUMES: No. No precise measuresents are made. They are used

As an aide memoire, if you will, to the pathologist as he later
writes his report.

More lmportantly, we feel, that the measurements which are noted
here at the margins of the drawing are the precise measurement:
which we took., One states that -- we draw two lines, points of
reference -~ from bony points of reference., We note that there
#ere -- the wound was fourteen centimeters from the tip of tre
right acromion, and fourteen centimeters below the tip of the
right mastold, Now the acromion is the extreme ocutermost por:i-
of the shoulder, The tip of the mastold is the bony prominencs
Just behind the ear. And where these two lines intersect was,

in actuality, whers this wound was situated. And if we would

'ry and draw that to scale, which we weren't trying to do as *h!-
raTk was made, this, I think, would appear a little bit higher.

RATHER: Now, you examined this whole area of the back?
HUMRS:  Yes, sir,

RATHER: Were there any other wounds except one at the base of
the neck, and one up in the skull?

MUMEL: Mo, sir, there were not. Now the second drawing, whi. .
| meationed, was prepared as we were pre aring to testify
fore the warren Commission, to rather schematically and as
t:curately as we possibly could depict the story for the member.
af the Warren Commission.

RATHER: In this drawing you were trying to be pracise?
HUMES: Yes, sir, we were. We wers trying to be precise, and

refer back to our measurements that we had made and noteé in
the margins of the other drawing.

SRDIE R PR S-S SEE I FOUNERSS IEPSSES S S
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Also, of course, ‘since this time we have had opportunity *-
review the photographs which we made at that time. And th:s-
photographs show very clearly that the wound was Pnd(tly v

we stated 1t to be in our testimony before the Warren uu~n3¢
and as 1t is shown in this drawing.

RATHER: Your re-examination of the photographs verify that ‘e

. wounds were as shoun here?

HUMES: Ies, sir, they do.

RATHER.. About the -- the head wound ...

HUMES: Yes, sir.

RATHER: ....thére was only one?

HUMES: There was only one entrance wound in the head, yez, sir.
AATHER: And that was where?

HUMES: That wastggsterior, about two and a half centimeters
te the right of midline, posteriorly.

RATHER: And the exit wound?

HUMES: And the exit wound was a large irregular wound to ti-
front and side -- right side of the President!s head,.

HATHEL: Now, can you be absolutely certain that the wourn:
described as the entry wound was, in fact, that?

JUMES: Yes, indeed, we can - very precisely and inccutroue

Il.e missile traversed the skin, and then traversed the hon:

And as it passed through the skull it produced a charc:te:
conlng, or oeveling effect on the inner aspect of the skui: -
which is scientific evidence that the wound was made from behiig
and passed forward through the President's skull.

RATHER: This 1is very important. You say the sclientifi-
evidence -- is it conclusive scientific evidence?

HUMEG: Yes, sir, it 1is.
1AlHER: How many autopsies have you performed?
HUMESs: I == I 'would estimate approximatély one thousand.

FAaHER: Is there any doubt that the wound at the buck ol
fresldent's head was the entry wound?

HUMES: There!is absolutely no doubt, sir.
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Where 1s the source of Humes' "preclse" locating of the fatal

wound - and 1t is mrecise - "two and a half centimeters to the right of

the midline"?

There is no such note 1n the “margin"gjﬂHITEWASH 197), no such
mark on an f@inidentified scheme of a head wound that is part of Exhibit
397 (17H46), which abounds in other marks, seems as though it might be
a chart of the President's head Injuries, and sems also not to show this
"wound of entry"™ of the bullet sald to have entered the back of his head
and to have exploded out 1ts right side - and only its right side.

Thus, mgﬁn asked, "can you be absolutely certain", Humes declared,
"very precisely aml lntontrovertibly", satisfying Rather and everyone
else at CBS and explaining again why the autopsy doctors will not speak
to those whthout CBS' preconceptions or dedicstion tqmythology when a
Fresident 1s murdered. f

Can there be any dout of the "concluslve sclentific evidencel,
Rather's felicitous cholce, when the "precise" and "incontbovertible"
evidence 1s a chart that has none of the mmsurements and is described
as "never meant to be accurate or precisely to scale"?

This is the "new sclence", reserved for the solution of Presidential

murders and the gloriss of eslectronic journslism.

f'Exﬁra Space
The fresident's bedy was removed from Dallas, where the only ap-
plicable law obtained, in deference to the widow's wishes, according to
undisputed published accounts. For the same reason, according to the
same sources, before 1t reached Washington arramgembns were made for the

'F?‘ e

autopsy examination to bﬁht Bethesda Naval Hospital., In nire—hurdred
>

pages of its Report and -bwenby-six volumes of evidence, the of ficial

record made of thls autopsy 1s so deficlent that the Commission saw to it

there was no public record of those who attended that autopsy.
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No such record in 10,000,000 words about a President's murder]

Why?

As we shall see, 1t 1s not because the record was not 1In 1ts flles.

The examination was La—eé;rge=ef Humes as Chief of Laborataries,
‘(Rather might have said "Now, Civilian" instead of "Now, Captain"; for at

et Gl s A e m,u St
the time this show was-?é?eéﬁhe quietly returrsdsto private practlce
Immediately after thlsﬁfifst and only public appearance and comment on
the autopsm)zﬁ Céfg§§f7?ierre Finck, of the Army Medical Service, whose
exnerience in both forensic medicine and wounds ballis] tics (he ws chisf
of that Army branchj)mﬁg’é;fe:z:ﬂ:td Boswell, then Humes'! Naval-Hos pital
assitant. Not long after his Gommission testimony, Boswell had returned
to prlvate practice.

From the official account, these three doctors were the ones who
actually performed the examinatlon and signed the report on it. So slight
was Boswell's participation, according to the FBI, that in thelr report
hé is listed merely as among those present.

That Humes did not make any phblic statement or appearance prior
to his telecasting by CBS is not because he was not sought. He just
ducked unless he had reason to believe in advance that he would not be
questlioned about what he had done, unless he received assurances that he
would be whitewashed. The same also seems to have been true of Boswell,.
Finek was more fortunate. His work seems to have kept him ocut of the
country for extended berlods. When he looks back on this period, Dr.
Finck may regard the horrors of long medical service in N&et Nam as a

blessing.

No civillan expert - no one not in govermment military service -

was permitted at the autopsy examinatlion. Had the autopsy been a model

of sclentiflc and forensic-medical precision - which it was not - this
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alone would have been sufficient to assure doubts and mlsgivings. It
should never have happened thls way.

Whether or not Mrs. Kemmedy wanted the autopsy examination to be
i

st

done in & naval institution because her husband's military service had
been naval, someone not as shocked by the crime as shq)and not as stunned
By 1ts horror and overwhelmed by the lmmedlate and pressing consequences
and necessities, should have seen to it that clvllian experts of the
greatest experlence and highest repute were at least observers. There
should have been pathologists not in the military service, not on any
government payroll, not in any sense under any officlal obligation ar com-
pulsion and with unassailable sclentific credentials in mediecal under-
gtending of crimes of vlolence)to assure the impartiality and thoroughness
of the examination and iz accounting and to aatlsfy ﬁhe country and the
world that there was no questlon about either the examination or the
official report of 1it.

Someone with the power and the authority to prevent this accomplishec
the opposite. In these same 10,000,000 offic lal words on theﬁnveatigation
of the Presidential murder, in those same 900 pages of the official
Report on it, the fact of this is entirely absent, as 1s the ildentity of
the person responsible for seeing to it that there was no civilian check
on the military, for seelng to 1t that there was no single civilian expert
present at the autopsy.

Those present ;t the autopsy examlnation - even those who Just
entered the room and then left - were duly recorded. That data was in
the Commission's filea. I print it in this book (sée PP. Je T

Is it an accident that this obvious faillng escaped official
Commission attention, an accident that the Commission was without comment

on it in 1ts Report and testimony ard evidence?
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Of is it, as I believe the record establishes, deliberate suppress-

ion - part of the whltewashing? D
Spliw ettt g
So we have these new insights Into the autopsy and the men who |did
it, the autopsy report that was from data "never meant to be accurate" by
a doctor who "would have been more careful" had he known his work "would

become public record" - by a doctor who expected secrecy to be the grave

of his autopsy work on a fresident of the United States!

And we now know aboutﬁ&at was not included in the offliclal in-
vestigation and the official Report on It:

That microspoplic tissue slides were made ard "there 1s no mention
of these slides" in the autopsy repart;
_‘ 'I‘_hat despite thelr contrary statements under o&sh, the doctors
1{%"1{;1«‘:“"‘{ 'u'r—frTg their examinatlon that a tracheotomy had been pefformed in
Dallas and "had already been told of the probable extent of the Injuries
and what had been done by physiclans in Dallas" before the body arrlved;:

That a revised autopsy was prepared when 1t was known that, with
Oswald's murder, there would be no trilal, no cross-examima tion on 1t 3

Thet not until they could not probe the rear, non-fatal wound did
the doctors take "complete X-rays of the entlre body"y

That the ariginal notes of the autopsy were preserved but @ not
exist in any of the duplicate places they are required to exist - although
without them there can. be no support fv the sutopsy, whose raw materlal
they are; .

That the "precise" location of the fatal ermtry wound 1s recaded in
non-exlsting marginal notes on an inaccurate chart, the only existfn_g N
recorded note of its "locatlon";

That the Commission appressed the identitiss of #vse who attended

the autopsy (and as we shall see, did not call most of them as wit nesses)j
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That tremilitary expelled all civilians from the autopsy examina-

tion;?;gout which we shall also have more)
A DDINED
That the chlef of the autopsy wied-with CBS~TV in lylng out when
he saw the plctures of the autopsy, how many tims he saw thém, ardwhdt
he did with them, all to the complete silence of the press and offlc lals
who knew the truthe.
We can now better understand that it I1s this officlal silence in
the presence of "error" and of lies - perhaps perjury - am the blind,
uncritical supporﬁjby lies, distortions and the grossest mlsrepresentations

7

we expect better from the press that has so abandoned its responsibllities

by a servile preas)that cumpounqi the tragedy o the phony inquest.” Can
and traditlons that it permitted the original miscarrlage?

Can we expect better from the press that suddenly was Joyous be-
cause it found "error" in the President's autopsy - this wrong mddng it

all right?



